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Dem Ms. Sa111iago: 

Enclosed fo r Ii ling in 1hc abovc-relcrcncccl action. please !incl the original and one copy o f a 
Co111plain1 and oticc or Opportunity for I!caring. which seeks penalties for alleged violations or 
S1.:ct ions 15 and 409 or the Toxic Substances Control Act ( ..TSCA .. ). 15 U.S.C. §§ 2614 and 
2689. and regulations promulgated under TSCA known as the Renovation. Repair and Painting 
Ruic. 

Thank you for your attention to this matter. 

Enclosures 

cc: Daviu Magee. Build-It Bros .. LLC 
John Bucci. Maine DEP 
M. Molly Magoon. EP.I\ Region I 
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UNITED ST ATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
REGION J - NEW ENGLAND 

In the Matter o f: ) 
) Docket No. 

Bui ld-It Bros.. LLC ) TSCA-01-20 19-0055 
38 Mussey Road ) 

Scarborough. ME 04074 ) COMPLAINT 
) AND 

Respondent. ) NOTICE OF OPPORTUNITY 
) FOR HEARI NG 

Pmceeclin}{ under Sect ion / 6(a) rfthe ) RECEIVt:.l.JToxic Suhstances Co/1/rul Act. ) 

./2 l/. S.C. f 26/j(CI). ) 
_________________) 

I. This Administrative Complaint and Notice of Opport~rifty for 11{~arit,g 

c-·compla int"·) is issued by Complainant. the U. S. Environmental Protection Agency ( .. EPA··). 

pursuant to Sectio n l6(a) o f the Toxic Substances Control Act c·TSCA.. ). 15 U.S.C. § 261 S(a). 

reg ulations implementing TSCA at 40 C.F.R. *745.87. and the Consolidated Rules of Practice 

Uuwrning the Administrati w Assessment o f Civil Penalties and the Revocatio n/Termination or 

S uspension o l" Pe nnits c ·consolidated Ruks o f Practice··). 40 C.F.R. Part 22. T he Complainant 

is the Directo r o f the Enforcement and Compliance Assurance Di vis ion. United States 

Environmental Protection Agency ( .. EPA""). Regio n I - New England. 

2. The Respondent in this action. Build-It Bros.. LLC ( .. Build-It Bros:· or 

··Responde nt"·) o f Scarborough. Maine. is hereby notified o f Compla inant's determinatio n that it 

hus \' io latcd Sectio ns 15 and 409 ofTSCA. 15 U .S.C. §§ 26 14 and 2689. and fede ral regulations 

promulgated under TSCA and the Residential Lead-Based Paint I lazard Reducti on Act o f 1992 

(""the Act"·). 42 U.S.C. ~ 4851 et seq .. including 40 C. F.R. Part 745. Subpart E. and 40 C.F.R. 

Part 745. Subpart L. as amended {collect ively relcrred to herein as the ..Renovation. Repair a nd 

Pa inting Ruic .. o r ··RRP Ruic··). Respondent is also hereby notified that Complainant seeks civi l 
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penalties pursuant to Sc<.:tion 16 ofTSCJ\. 15 U.S.C. *26 15. which provides that v io lations o r 

TSCA Sc<.:tions 15 or 409 arc: subject to the assessment by Complainant ofcivil and/or c riminal 

penalties. 

I. STAT TORY AND REGt;LATORY AUTHORITY 

3. In 1992. Congress passed the Act in response to lindings that low-level lead 

poisoni ng is \\'idespread am ong J\mcrican chi ldren. that prc-1980 American housing s tock 

contains more than three mi Ilion tons o r lead in the fom, o r lead-based paint. and that the 

ingestion or lcaJ from deteriorated or abraded lead-based paint is the most common cause o r lead 

poisoning in c hi ldn.:n. J\mong the s tated purposes o r the Act is ensuring that the ex is tence or 

lead-based paint hazards be taken into account in the rental a nd renovation or homes and 

apartments. To carry out these purposes. the A<.:! added a new section to TSCA. e ntitlcJ 

Suhdwpter 11 · - Lead Exposure Recluctio11. which includes TSCA Sectio ns 401 -41 2. 15 lJ.S.C. 

*~ 2681-2692. 

4. In I996. EPA promulgated regulations to implement S1:<.:t io n 402(a) o r TSC/\ 

Il,e,ul-/Jased Paint Activities 7i·aininx mu/ ( ·er1lficatio11 - Regulations]. 15 U.S.C. ~ 2682(a). which 

arc set fo rth at 40 C.f.R. Part 745. Subpart L fLeacl-/Jased Paint Actfrities. 40 C.F.R. ~~ 

745.220-745.2391- commonly referred to as the ··Lead-Based Paint Activities. Certi lication. and 

Training Ruic .. or the ··LJJP Activities Ruic:· In I998. EPA promulgated regulatio ns to 

implement Section 406(b) orT 'CJ\ l lead Hazard l,!/ormativn Pamphlet Re11orntio11 ofTarget 

/1011si11g l. 15 U.S.C. ~ 2686(b). which arc set fo rth at 40 C .F.R. Pan 745. Subpart E lReside111ial 

2 
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Properly Re11orn1io11. 40 C.F.R. ~~ 745.80-745.92]. commonly ref"t::rred to as the ··Pre

Renovation Education Rule·· or ··PRE Rule."· 

5. In 2008. EPA promulgated regulations to implement Section 402(c)(3) of"TSCA 

ILewl-!Jased /'aim Aclirilies 1i-ai11ing and Cer1[ficn1io11 - Re11ol'mion mu/ Remodeling 

Cer1[/ica1io11 De1ermina1io11j. 15 U.S.C. § 2682(c){3). by amending both the PRE Rule at 40 

C.F.R. Part 745. S ubpart E. as well as the LBP Activities Rule at 40 C.F.R. Part 745. Subpart L. 

now commonly referred to as the ··RRP Rule."· 

6. The RRP Rule sets forth procedures and requirements for. among other things. the 

accredi tation of training programs. certification of renovation fi rms and individual renovators. 

disclosure a nd work practice s tandards for renovatio n. repair. and painti ng activities in target 

housing and child-occupied facilities. and the establishment and retention of records to document 

compliance. 

7. PursuanI to Section 40 I ( 17) o f TSCA. as amended. I 5 U .S.C. ~ 2681 ( I 7). tht: 

housing stock addressed by the /\ct and the RRP Ruic is ··target housing."· defined a s any 

hous ing constructed prior to 1978. except housing for the elderly or persons with disabil ities o r 

any 0-bcdroom dwelling (unless any child who is less than 6 years ofage resides or is expected 

to reside in such ho using). See 40 C.F.R. § 745. 103 . 

8. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 745.82. the requirements of the RRP Ruic apply to all 

renovations perlormcd for compensation in target housing. as defined in TSCA Section 40 I ( 17) 

and 40 C.F.R. ~ 745. I 03. and in ··child-occupied facilities."· as defined in 40 C .F.R. *745.83. 

https://745.80-745.92


Com Jlaint and oticc ofO ortunitv for I !caring 
Build-fl !Jm., .. LLC. rSCA-0 1-20 19-0055 

9 . Pursuant to Section 401( 14) or TSC/\. 15 U.S.C. *2681 ( 14). and 40 C.F.R. 

*7➔5. 1 03. the tem1 ··residential dwelling.. means either a s ingle-family dwelling. inc luding 

attached s tructures such as porches and stoops. or a s ingle-family dwell ing unit in a s tructure that 

contains more than one separate residential dwelling unit. and in which each such unit is used o r 

occupied. or intended to be used or occupied. in who le or in part. as the residence or one or m o re 

persons. 

I 0 . For purposes o r complying with Section 406(b) o fTSC/\ and the RRP Ruic. 

pursuant to 40 C.F.R. *745.83. the term ··pamphlet .. as used here in means the EPA-approved 

pamphlet developed under TSCA Section 406{a). entitled ..Renornte Right: lmpor10111 Lead 

I la=cml l,!f'i,rnw1im1Jiw Families. ( ·1,;/d ( ·are PrtJl'iders mul Schuuls.. (EP/\ # 740-K- I 0 -00 I ). or 

any State o r Tribal pamphlet developed for the same purpose and approved hy EP/\ under 

40 C. F.R. *745.326. 

11 . Pursuant to 40 C.F. R. *745.83. the term ··nrn1·· means a company. panncrshi p. 

corporation. sole proprietor ·hip ur individual doi ng business. association. or other business 

entity: a l\:<l...:ral. State. Tribal. or local government agency: or a nonpro fit organization. 

12. Pursuant to 40 C.F. R. *745.83. the tcnn ..renovation .. mc.:ans the modification of 

any c.'\is ting s truc ture. or po rtion thereof. that results in the disturbance of painted s urfaces. 

unless thal activity is performed as pan o r an ..abatcmcm:· as delined by 40 C.F.R. *745.223. 

The term renovatio n includes. but is not Ii mi led to: the removal or modi licatio n of painted 

surfaei.:s o r painti.:J componcnls (e.g.. modilicatiun orpain1c<l doo rs. surface res to ratio n. window 
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repair. surface preparation activity (such as sanding. scraping. or other such activities that may 

generate paint dust)): the removal o f building components (e.g .. wall s. ceiling. plumbing, 

windows): wcathcrization projects (e.g. cutting holes in painted surfaces to install blown-in 

insulation or to gain access to attics. planing thresholds to install weather-stripping). and interim 

controls that disturb painted surfoces. The term renovation docs not include minor repair and 

mai ntenance activities. 

13. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. *745.83. the tern, --minor repair and maintenance 

activi ties .. means acti vities. including minor heating. ventilation or air conditioning work. 

electrical work. and plumbing. that disrupt 6 square leet or less of painted surface per room fo r 

interior activities or 20 square feet or less of painted surface for exterior act ivities where none of 

the work pract ice~ prohibitcd or restricted by 40 C.F.R. ~ 745.85(a)(3) arc used and where the 

work docs not involve window replacement or demolition of painted surface areas. 

14. Pursuant to 40 C. F.R. *745.83. the term --renovator.. means an individual who 

either performs or din:cts workers who perform renovations. A certified renovator is a renovator 

who has successfully completed a renovator course accredited by EPA or by an EPA-authorized 

State or Tribal program. 

I 5. Under the RRP Ruic. except in circumstances specified by the regulations that arc 

not relevant to Respondent or the violations alleged in this Complaint. lirrns performing 

renovations in target housing and chi ld-occupied fac ilities are. among other things. required to: 

1. Obtain an EPJ\ certification for the firm prior to performing renovations: 

5 
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11. Provide the EPA-approved pamphlet to the owner and adul t occupant before 
renovation act ivities begin and obtain ,vritten verification that the pamphlet was 
provided: 

111. Ensure that a certified renovator either performs the renovation or directs a properly 
trained worker to perfom1 the renovation: 

1v . For exterior renovations. suniciently cover the ground with plastic or other 

disposable impermeable material to collect falling paint debris: and. 

v. Retain all records necessary to demonstrate compliance with the same. 

See 40 C.F .R. ~~ 745.8 1 (a)(2). 745.84(a)( I ). 745.84(a)(2). 745.89( cl)( I)-(5 ). 
745.85(a){2)( ii)(C). and 745.86(a) and (b). 

16. Pursuant to Section 409 ofTSCA. it is unlawful fo r any person to fail to comply 

with any rule issued under Subchapter IV ofTSCA (such as the RRP Rule). Pursuant to 40 

C.F.R. ~ 745.87(a). the failure lO comply with a requirement o f the RRP Ruic is a vio la tion of 

Section 409 ofTSCA. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 745.87(6). the fai lure to establish and maintain 

records required by the RRP Rule. or to make them available. is a violation of Sections 15 and 

409 of TSCA. 

17. Section I 6(a)( I) ofTSCA. 15 U.S.C. § 26 I 5(a)( I ). provides that any person who 

· violates a provision or Section 15 or 409 of TSCJ\ shall be liable to the United States for a civil 

penalty. 

18. Section I 6(a) ofTSCA and 40 C.F.R. § 745.87(d) authorize the assessment o f a 

civi l penalty o f up to $25.000 per violation per day o f the RRP Rule. Pursuant to the Debt 

Collection Improvement Act or 1996. 3 1 U.S.C. ~ 3701 note (""Debt Collection Improvement 

6 
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;kt.. ). and EPA ·s C ivil Monetary Penalty Inflation Adjustment Ruic a t 40 C.F.R. Pa n 19 

( .. Penalty lnllation Ruic··). each such TSCA vio latio n that occurs atier Decembe r 6. 201 3 is 

subject to penalties o r up lo $37.500 per day pe r violation. See 78 Fed. Reg. 66643 (November 6. 

:W 13 ). Under the 20 15 amendments to the Federal Civil Penalties lnllation Adjustment Act of 

I990. 28 U.S.C. ~ 2461 note ( .. 20 I 5 Inflation Adjustment Act"). and the Pe nalty In ll ation Ruic. 

the $37.500 maximum pena lty was raised to $39.873 for each such violation that occurs after 

November 2. 20 15. and for which penalties arc assessed on o r a tier February 6. 20 19. See Pub. 

LI 14-74. Section 701 (Nov. 2. 20 15): 84 Fed. Reg. 2056 (Feb. 6.2019) and 84 Fed. Reg. 5955 

(Feb.25.20 19). 

II. GENERAL ALLEGATIONS 

19. Respondent. 8uild-lt Bros .. LI .C . is a Maine limited liability company. organized 

in or around 2018. with its principal business o flices located at 38 Mussey Road in Scarborough. 

Mai ne. 

20 . Build-It Bros. provides residentia l renovation services in and around the Po rtland. 

Ma ine area. Build-It Bros. specializes in carpentry. decks. rooling. and siding and o perates 

under the direction o r its owner and manager. David Magee. 

2 1. Beginning in January 201 9. and continuing into January 24 and 25. 20 I 9 . then 

further into ea rly February 2019. Respondent perfonned renovation acti vities w hic h constituted a 

" renovation" wi thin the meaning o f 40 C.F.R. *745.83 at a multi-unit residential p roperty (3 

units) located at 6 I 3 Washing ton A venue in Portland. Maine (he reinafter. the "Washingto n Ave. 

7 
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Rcnovation.. ). 

22. T he Washington Ave. Renovation involved the removal oro ld exterior porch 

components. repai rs. and installation o f new porches and components. 

-,., 
- -'· The multi-unit residential property located at 6 13 Wash ing ton Avenue in 

Po rtland. Maine (the ··Property"·) is pri vately owned and was built in or around the 1920s. 

24. On or about Februa ry 5. 2019. a duly-authorized EPA inspecto r conducted a 

records inspectio n o r Build-I t Bros. with David Magee. principal of Build-It Bros .. a t the o ffices 

o f' tht: Maine Department of Environmental Protection (··Ma ine DEP .. ) at 3 12. Caneo Road in 

Po rtland. Maine. Later in the day on February 5. 20 19. the EPA inspector co nd uc ted a 

compliance inspectio n at the Washi ngton Ave. Renovation. and observed the ex te rior cond itions 

at the Propt:rty. 

r_)_ During the February 5. 20 19 inspections at the Maine DEP o ffices and at the 

Property. EP/\ soug ht records and other information re lative to Respondent" s compliance w ith 

RRP Rule requirements. 

26. The Washington Ave. Renovation performed by Respondent. as described in 

Paragraphs 2 1 and 22 above. constituted a renovation for compensation within the meaning of 

TSC/\ Section 406(b) and the RRP Ruic. The Washing ton Ave . Renovation does no t fa ll w ithin 

any exemption set forth in 40 C.F.R. ~ 745.82. 

27. The Property described in Paragraph 23 above that is associated with the 

v iolations a lleged in this Complaint is ··target housing·· as defined in Section 40 I ( 17) o rTSCA 

8 
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an<l 40 C.F.R. § 745. 103. Neither the Propcrty nor any or the residential units therein satis fies 

the requirements for an exemption under the provisions o r the Act. TSCA (including 15 U.S.C. § 

268 1 ( 17)). or the RRP Ruic ( including 40 C. F.R. § 745.82). 

28. J\t all times relevant to the violations alleged in this Complaint. Respondent was a 

·•1irm:· as delined in 40 C.F.R. § 746.83. 

III. VIOLATIONS 

29. EPA has identilicd the fo llo wing violations orTSCA and the RRP Ruic based o n 

documents and o ther in fonnation obtained from Respondent during. or as a result of: the 

inspections and EP /\·s investigation or thc facts and c ircumstances underlyi ng the violatio ns . 

FIHST COllNT 
Failure IO Ohtain Firm ( ·ertifirnrion 

30. Paragraphs I through 29. above. are incorporated by reference as ir folly set forth 

herein. 

31. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 745.8 1 (a)(2). no linn may perfo rm. offer. or c laim to 

perform renovations in target housing or child-occupied faci lities without certificatio n from EP/\ 

under 40 c.r.R. § 745.89. unless the renovation is exempt under 40 C.F. R. § 745.82. Pursuant to 

-JO C.F.R. *745.89(a). lirms that pcrfonn renovations for compensatio n must apply to EPA tor 

cenilication to perform renovations or dust sampling. 

32. l3eginning in January 20 19. and continuing into January 24 and 25. 20 19. then 

runhcr into early rebruary 20 19. Respondent conducted the Washingto n Ave. Renovation which 

involved the d is1urbance orover twenly (20) square lee! o r exterior pa in1cd surfot:c and. in 

9 
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particular. demolition or paintt..:d surface areas. sanding and/or scraping. that can generate paint 

chips. debris. and dust. 

33. The Washing1on J\ve. Renovation did not quality as minor maintenance and 

repair act ivities under 40 C.f-.R. § 745.83. nor was it exempt under 40 C.r-.R. § 745.82. 

34. J\t no time before or during the Washington Ave. Renovation had Build-It Bros. 

obtained initial EPA-certification as a finn under 40 C.F.R. ~ 745.89(a). 

35. Build- It Bros."s perfonnam:c of the Washington J\ve. Renovation w ithout bei ng 

ccrti lied as a lirm under 40 C.F.R. § 745.89 constitutes a violation or40 C.F.R. §§ 745.81 (a)(2) 

and 745.89(a). and TSCA Section 409. 

36. The above-referenced violation a lleged in this First Count is a prohibited act 

under TSCA Section 409 and 40 C . r-.R. ~ 745.87. and a violation for which penalties may be 

assessed pursuant to Section 16 ofTSCA. 15 U.S.C. § 2615. 

SECO:-,ID COlll'iT 

Failure to Pro,·ide Pre-Renovorio11 Education b1/or111arion 

37. Paragraphs I through 36. above. are incorporated by reference as irru lly set forth 

herein. 

38. Pursuant to 40 C.F. R. § 745.84(a)( I) and (a)(2). with respect to a rented 

res idential dwelling unit in target housing. a lirm must provide lead hazard informat ion in the 

fom1 or an EPA pamph let to the owner and a tenant or adult occupant no more than 60 days prior 

to performing renovation activities therein. and also. obtain a written acknowledgement of 

receipt or certi ficate of nrni ling such pamphlet. in the manner speci fied at 40 C.F.R. §§ 

10 
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7-15.8-l(a)( I )(i) or (a)( I )( ii ) and 745.84(a)(2)(i) or (a)(2)( ii). 

39. Build-It Bros. did not pro\'ide an EPA-appro\'ed pamphlet 10 the owner or any 

tenant or adult m:cupa111s before comn11.:ncing the Washington Ave. Renovation. 

-10. Rcspondent·s failure 10 distribute a kad hazard infomrntion pamphlet to the 

owner and any adult occupants of the dwelling units affected by the Washington J\ve. 

Renovation constitutes a violation of-10 c.r-.R. *7-15.84{a)( I ) and (a)(2). and Section -109 of 

TSCJ\. 

-1 1. The above-listi.:d violation alleged in this Second Count is a prohibited act under 

T SCJ\ Section 409 and 40 C.F. R. *745.87. and a violat ion for which penalties may he assl!ss<.:d 

pursuant to Section 16 ofTSCJ\. 

T1111m C01·NT 

Failure w /;;11s11re Catified Re1101·ator Pe,jorms or Dirc:c:1., Work 

.n. Paragraphs I through 41. above. arc incorporated by refe rence as if fully set fo rth 

herein. 

-I~. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. ~ 745.89(d)( I ). !inns performing renovations in target 

housing must ensure that all indi" iduals who perform renovation activities on behal rof the lirm 

are ei ther certified n:novators or have been trained by a certified renovator in accordance with 

-10 C.F.R. ~ 745.90. Pursuant to -10 C.F.R. s745.89(d)(2). firms must ensure that a certified 

reno, ·ator is assigned to each renovation and discharges all the certified renovator responsibi Ii tics 

identified in -10 C.F.R. *7-15.90. 

44. At no time before or during the Washington Aw. Renovation was any person 

11 
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pcrli)rming the n.:novation activities either a certified renovator or trained by a eertilicd 

renovator. nor was a ccrtilh:d renovator assigned to the Washington Ave. Renovation. as 

specified under 40 c. r.R. ~ 745.89(d)( 1) and (d)(2). 

45. Build-It Bros:s failure 10 ensure that an individual performing renovation 

activities at the Washington Ave. Renovation was either a ccrtilied renovator or trained by a 

certified renovator. and its failure 10 ensure that a certified renovator was assigned to the 

Washi ngton Ave. Renovation to carry out all of the responsibilities in 40 CT.R. *745.90 

constituted a violation or40 C.F.R. *745.89(d)( I) and (d)(2). 

46. The above-listed violation al leged in this Third Count is a prohibited act under 

TSCA Section 409 and 40 c.r-.R. *745.87. and is a violation for which penalties may be 

assessed pursuant to Section 16 of'TSCA. 

Fonn·11 Cou~T 
Failure to Pm11er~r Cu11tai11 Exterior Work Area 

47. Paragraphs I through 46. abo,·e. arc incorporated by reference as if full y set forth 

herein. 

48. Pursuant to 40 c.r.R. ~ 745.89(d)(3). lim1s performing renovations must ensure 

that all renovations performed by the firm are performed in accordance with the work practi<.:e 

standards in 40 C.F.R. ~ 745.85. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. *745.85(a)(2)(ii)(C). in pert inent part. 

firms performing exterior renovations in target housi ng must cover the ground with plastic 

sheeting or other disposable irnpenneable material extending IO reel beyond the perimeter of the 

surfaces undergoing renovation or a sufficient distance to collect falling paint debris. whichever 

12 
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is greater. 

➔9. With regard to the Washington Ave. Renovation. Respondent foiled to cover the 

ground with plastic sheeting or other disposable impermeable material in accordance with the 

RRP Rule. and such failure constituted a violation of"40 C.F.R. §§ 745.89(d)(3) and 

745.85(a )(2)(i i)(C). 

50. The above-listed violation al leged in this fourth Count is a prohibited act under 

TSCA Se<.:tion 409 and 40 C.F.R. § 745.87. and a violation for which penalties may be assessed 

pursuant tu Section 16 ol"TSCI\. 

IV. PROPOSED PENAL TY 

51. Section 409 or TSCJ\ and 40 C.F.R. § 745.87 provide that. for purposes or 

enforcing the RRP Ruic under TSC/\. the penalty for each violation under TSCJ\ Section 16 

shal I bc nu morc than $25.000. Pursuant to the Debt Collection Impruvement Act. the 20 I 5 

lntlation Adjustment /\ct. and EPA· s Penalty Inflation Rule. at 40 C.r.R. § 19.4. the maximum 

penalty for each such TSCA violation \vas increased lo $39.873 for violations occurring after 

November 2. 2015. for which penalty assessment is on or after r-cbruary 6. 2019. 

52. In determining the amount ofany penalty to be assessed. Section l6(a) ofTSCA 

requires EP/\ to consider the nature. circumstances. extent and gravity of the violations and. with 

respect to the violator. ability to pay. the effec t of the proposed penalty on the ability or the 

violator to continue to do business. any history or prior sud1 violations. the degree of" culpability 

of the violator. and such other matters as justice may require . .\·ee 15 U.S.C. § 26 I 5(a)(2)( B ). To 

13 
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assess a penalty for the violations alleged herein. Complainant will take into account the 

particular facts and circumstances or this case with speci fie reference to EPA·s /\ugust 20 I 0 

( ·011.wlidated £i?fiJrc:e111e111 Response mu/ Penalty />olilyfor the />re-Re11ovutio11 Ed11c.:llfion Rule: 

Renorntion. Repair and l'ai111i11~ Rule: and Lead-Based Pailll Activities Rule c--RRP Penalty 

Policy .. ) (revised April 2013). A copy of the RRP Penalty Policy is enclosed with this 

Complaint. The RRP Penalty Po licy provides a rational. consistent. and equitable calculation 

methodology for applying the above-l istt:d s tatuto ry penalty factors to specific cases. 

53. By thi s Complaint. Complainru1t seeks to assess c ivil penalties ofup to the 

s tatutory maximum or $39.873 per violation against the Respondent. Build- It Bros.. LLC. for the 

following violations: 

1. Fl RST COUNT: At least o ne (I) vio lation o f 40 C.f-.R. §§ 745.8 1(a)(2) and 
745.89(a) for perfom1ing renovation activities ·without EPA certification as a lirm -
The RRP Rule requirements arc intended to prevent exposure to lead during 
renovations. A lirrn·s fai lure to obtain initial EPA certification prior to offering or 
perfom1ing renovations in target housing has a medium probability of impacting 
human health and the environment through. for example. failure to use best work 
practices. failure to convey to tenants the risks associated with renovations. and 
failure to have adequate knowledge for meeting all RRP Rule obligations. 

11. SF.COND COU T: At least one ( I) violatio n of 40 CTR. § 745.84(a)( I ) and 
(a)(2) for lailurc to provide prc-re;:novation education information (pamphlet) - A 
lirm· s failure to provide an EPA-approved lead ha7.ard information pamphlet to the 
owm:r and un adult occupant prior to renovating has a high probabi lity of impacting 
human health and the environment. Without receiving a pamphlet. it is highly 
probable that the owner/occupant's ability to properly assess information about the 
risks orexposure to lead-based paint and to weigh this in formation with regard to 
renovations in the target housing will be impaired. The pamphlet descri bes the 
hazards associated with lead-based paint and provides information about how 
occupants can protect themselves against potential lead exposure. T he pamphlet 
ulso expla ins that lead exposure is especially harmful to young child ren and 
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pregnant women. and explains how occupants can protect themselves during a nd 
after any n.:novations. 

111. TH I RD COU T: At least one ( I) violation of40 C.f.R. §§ 745.89(d)( I) and (d)(2) 
for foilun: to use cert ified renovators - ;\ lirm· s failure to assign and use certified 
renovato rs for renovation act ivities performed in target housing has a medium 
probability o r impacting human health and the envi ronment. The failure to assign 
and use certified renovato rs to discharge all renovator duties under the RRP Rule 
presents a medium probability that renovators will not. for example. use best 
renovation practices and EPA-approved methods during the work and. thereby. will 
increase the chances ofan occupant" s exposure to lead during and/or after the 

•renovatio n. 

,v. rOURTH COUNT: At least one ( I) violation of40 c.r .R. §§ 745.89(d)(3) and 
745.85(a)(2)(ii)(C) for failure to contain exterior renovation work area - A tirm·s 
failure to rnver the ground with plastic sheeting or o the r disposable impermeable 
material extending IO feet o r more beyond the surfaces undergoing re novation so as 
to collect tailing paint debris has a hig h probability of impacting human health and 
the enviro nment. Without containing the work area and any paint debris generated 
by the renovation work. it is highly probable that the risks associated with exposure 
to lead-based paint debris and dust will increase lor anyone who may have;: access to 
the uncontained work area. 

54. Prior tu any hearing on this case. EPA will tile a document specify ing a proposed 

penalty amount for a ll of the violatio ns a lleged in this proceeding and explaining how the 

amo unt was calculated. as required by the Consolidated Rules of Practice. Complainant wi ll 

cakulate a proposed penalty based. in part. on its current knowledge or the Respondent" s 

linancial condition. The proposed penalty may be adjusted if Respondent establishes honajide 

issu1:s u r defenses relevant to the appropriate amount o f the penalty. Respondent shall pay the 

civil penalty with a c.rshier· s or certified check. payable lo the ·Treasurer. United S tates or 

America."· Respondent s hould note on the check the docket number of this Complaint (EPA 

Docket No. TSCA-01-20 19-0055). The check shall be forwarded to: 
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U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
1-"ines and Penalties 
P.O. l3ox 979077 
St. Louis. MO 63 197-9000 

In addition. at the time of payment. notice of payment of the civil penalty and copies of the check 

should be forwarded to: 

Wanda I. Santiago. Regional Hearing Clerk 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency - Region I 
5 Post Office Square. Suite 100 (Mail Code 04-6) 
Boston. Massachusetts 02 109-39 12 

and 

Hugh W. Martinez. Senior Enforcement Counsel 
U.S. Envi ronmental Protection Agency - Region I 
5 Post Office Square. Suite l00 (Mail Code 04-3) 
Boston. :v!A 02 l 09-39 12 

.\iotice ,fpay111e111 ma_,, he gil•en to 1\lr. 1\/arti11e:: 1·ia e-mail. at MartineL.hul!.h•a cpa.1!.ov. 

55. either the assessment nor payment ofan administrative penalty shall affect 

Respondent" s continuing obligation to comply with all applicable requirements of federal law. 

V. 'OTICE OF OPPORTUNITY TO REQ UEST A HEARING 

56. As provided by Section I 6(a)(2)(A) ofTSCA. 15 U.S.C. *26 I 5(a)(2)(A). and in 

accordance with 40 C.F.R. *22. 14 o r the Consolidated Rules of Practice. Respondent has a right 

to request a hearing on any material !act al leged in this Complaint or on the appropriateness of 

the proposed penalty. Any such hearing would be conducted in accordance with 40 C.F. R. Part 

22. A request for a hearing must be incorporated into a written Answer. Respondent m ust file 
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the original and one copy of the written Answer to this Compla int within thirt)' (30) days of 

receipt of th is Complaint. Respondent shal l send the ~ nswcr 10 the Regional Hearing C lerk at 

the following address: 

Wanda I. Santi ago. Regional Hearing Clerk 
U.S . Enviro nmental Protection J\gency - Region 1 
5 Post O nice Square. S uite 100 (Mail Code 04-6) 
Boston . Massachusetts 02 I09-39 I 2 

Respondents shall serve copies of the J\nswer( s). and any other documents submitted in this 

proceeding. to Complainant's counsel at the fo llo wing address: 

Hug h W. Martinez. Senior Enforcement Counsel 
U.S. Environmental Protectio n Agt:ncy - Rt:giun I 
5 Post Office Square. Suite 100 (Mail Code 04-3) 
Boston. MA 02 I09-39 12 

In its A nswer(s). Respondent may contest any material fact contained in the Com pla int. The 

Answer shall directly admit. deny. or explain each or the factua l allegations contained in the 

Complaint and sha ll s tate: (i) the circumstances or arguments alleged to cons titute the grounds of 

any de fense: (i i) the facts Respondent d isputes: (iii) the basis for opposing any proposed relief: 

and. ( iv ) whet her a hearing is requested. Where Respondent has no knowledge as to a partic ular 

factual allegatio n a nd so states. the a llegatio n is deemed denied. Any failure of Respondent to 

admit. deny. or explain a ny mate rial foct contained in the Complaint constitutes an admission o f 

that a llegatio n. See 40 C.F.R. *22. 15 for the required contents of an Answer. 

57. The tiling o f service ordocume nts other than the complaint. rulings. o rders. and 

decis io ns. in a ll cases bdorc the Regio n I Regional Judicial O fficer governed by the 
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Consoli<lutc<l Rules o r Practict: muy be tiled and served by e-mail. consistent with the ..Standing 

Order Authorizing Filing and Service by E-mail in Proceedings Before the Region I Regional 

Judicial Officer ... a copy o r which has been provided with this Complaint. 

58. Ir Respondent fails to tile a timely Answer to the Complaint. Respondent may be 

found to be in default. pursuant to 40 C.F.R. *22.1 7. For puriJoses o f this action only. de fault by 

Respondent constitutes an admission o r all facts alleged in the Complaint and a waiver of 

Respondent ·s right to contest such factual allegations under Section l6(a )(2)(A) of TSCA. 

Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. ~ 22. I 7(d ). the penalty assessed in the default order shall become due and 

payable by Respondent without further proceedings thirty (30 ) days after the default order 

becomes linal. 

VI. SETTLEMENT CONFERENCE 

59. Whether or not a hearing is requested upon tiling an Answer. Respondent may 

confer in fom,ally with the EPA concerning the all eged violations. Such conference provides 

Respon<lcnt with an opportunity to pro,·idc whatever additional infonnation may be relevant to 

the d isposition o f this matter. Any settlement shall be made final by the issuance o r a written 

Consent Agreement and Pinal Order by the Regional .Judicial O fficer. EP/\ Region 1. 

60. Please note that a request for an informal set1lement con!erence docs not extend 

the period within which a written Answer must be submitted to avoid default but that the 

deadl ine by which Respondent must file an Answer is only extended on a motion granted by the 

Regional Judicial Onicer in accordance with the Consolidated Rules or Practice. To explore the 
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possibility ofsettkment in this matter. Rcspond1.:nt should contact Hugh W. Martinez . Senior 

Enforcement Counsel. <1t the address provided above. o r by ca lling him al (6 17) 918-1 867 

(d ire<.:!). Mr. Martinez has been designated to represent Complainant in this matte r and is 

a uthorized. under 40 C.F.R. ~ 22.5(c)(4 ). to receive service on behalf of Complainant. 

Da te: _7_)-_ 2_c.o_·_-_I_Cj_ 

Enforcement and Compliance Assurance Divis ion 
E PA Region I - New England 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that the foregoing administrative Complaint and Notice orOpportunity for 
I!caring has been provided to the following persons on the date noted below: 

Original and one copy. 
hand-de livered to: 

One copy (with the Part 22 Rules 
and RRP Penalty Policy e nclosed). 
by Fi rs t Class Mail. Return 
Receipt Requested. to: 

Phone (dir.): (617) 918-1867 
Fax : (6 17) 918-0867 
E-mail: Martinez.hugh tt 'epa.go\ 

Wanda I. Sant iago 
Regional I !earing Clerk 
U.S. EPA - Region I 
5 Post Onicc Square. Suite 100 (Mail Code 04-6) 
Bos ton. Massachusetts 02109-3912 

David Magee. Owner and Registered Agent 
Build-It Bros .. LLC 
38 Mussey Road 
Scarboro ugh. ME 04074 
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